
   

 

 
 
 

Economic Development Authority of the City of Richmond 
Meeting Notice – May 25, 2023 

 
 
WHAT:       The City of Richmond’s Economic Development Authority will hold its  

May Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 
 
WHEN:          Thursday, May 25, 2023, at 11:30  AM 
 
WHERE:     Main Street Station, 1500 East Main Street, 3rd Floor Conference Room 
 

 
 

For more information about The City of Richmond’s Economic Development Authority (EDA),  
Visit:  http://www.richmondeda.com 

 
 
 

http://www.richmondeda.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EDA AGENDA 

 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RICHMOND 
AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA 

May 25, 2023,  11:30 AM 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Public Meeting Disclosure 
 

III. Public Comment (5 minutes) 
 

IV. Meeting Minutes 
A. Meeting Minutes – March 23, 2023 

 
V. ASM Report 

A. March Report 
B. April Report 

 
VI. Review of Financial Statements  

A. March  Report 
B. April Report 

 
VII. New Business 

A. Monarch Contract Renewal 
B. Black History Museum Armory Grant Contract 

 
VIII. Discussion Items 

A. Amphitheater Performance Agreement 
B. Resort Casino 
C. Local Enterprise Zone and CARE Program 
D. FY23 EDA Audit 
 

IX. Adjournment 

 

 



1 
 

Economic Development Authority (EDA) of the City of Richmond, Virginia 
Committee Meeting Minutes 

March  23, 2023 Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 
 
 
Members present: 
Nathan Hughes, Chairperson 
Neil Millhiser 
Jéron Crooks 
Jer’Mykeal McCoy 
 
Others present: 
Bonnie Ashley - City of Richmond,  
Carla Childs – City of Richmond, Department of Economic Development 
Katie McConnell - Department of Economic Development 
Leonard Sledge – City of Richmond, Department of Economic Development 
Lisa Jones – A. G. Reese & Associates 
Rick Winston - City of Richmond, Department of Economic Development 
Glenn Majors - ASM Global 
 
Call to Order: 
Mr. Hughes called the meeting to order at 12:33 PM.  Ms. Childs recorded the meeting using Microsoft 
Teams.   
 
Public Comments:   
No public comments were received via email, phone, or otherwise by staff per Ms. Childs. Mr. Sledge 
read the public disclaimer.  The meeting notice was properly posted on the Economic Development 
Authority website and outside of the Department of Economic Development Office located at 1500 East 
Main Street before the meeting.  
 
Approval of Minutes of the Previous Meeting: 
Mr. Hughes asked for a motion to adopt the minutes of the February 23, 2023 Audit and Finance Committee 
meeting. Mr. Crooks moved to accept the minutes as stated. Mr. Millhiser seconded the motion. The Motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
ASM Report: 
Mr. Majors presented the Training Center report on the behalf of Ms. Sechrist. There were twelve (12)  
events during  February at the Training Center. This included Eleven (11)  City of Richmond Meetings 
or Events with a net income of $2,200 The Training Center will be making repairs to the  Locker Room 
lighting and continuing the upgrade of the HVAC automation system  
 
The Training Center ended the month of February with a net income of $14,616. The Training Center’s 
year-to-date net income is $114,588. The first half of FY23 had significantly fewer events than the first 
half of FY22.  It is anticipated that an increase in the number of events in the second half of FY23 at the 
Training Center beginning in February 2023. As of February’s financials, the Training Center anticipates 
missing this fiscal year’s budget of $236,924 by approximately $6,000.  ASM is engaging with several 
clients to try to confirm some short-term rentals and monitor expenses to try to reach the budget. 
Accounts receivables totaled $41,000 and Accounts Payable totaled $47,000. There is a total of $88,000 



2 
 

received in advanced deposits for events starting in March 2023 through September 2024. Utilities 
continue to be higher in February.   
 
Review of Financial Statements:  
Stone Brewing 
Ms. Jones reported that Stone Brewery had no unusual activity.  Year-to-Date, the finances are ahead of 
budget by nearly $51,000. This is due to fewer repairs than budgeted. The next Bond  payment is due in 
June.  
 
EDA Operations  
Ms. Jones reported that the EDA invoiced the City for $250,000 to have the funds transferred to the EDA 
for the FY2023 Façade grant. The financial statements for operation show an income of $240,000 due 
to billing of the façade grant. 
 
The  Hunton Andrews Kurth sponsorship for $10,000 for the City of Richmond State of the City Address 
was received in March. The funds will be used to reimburse the expenses incurred by the EDA totaling 
$ 4,910 for the food vendors.  
 
New Business:  

Mr. Sledge asked the Board to consider a motion to authorize the Board Chair, upon approval by the 
Richmond City Council, to execute a Cooperation Agreement between the City and the Economic 
Development Authority (“EDA”).  Then to approve the transfer of ARPA funds for $700,000 to the EDA 
to provide technical assistance and grants to small businesses.  The Office of Minority Business 
Development will provide staffing and administrative support to the EDA in administering the program. 
Mr. Crooks made the motion. Mr. Millhiser seconded the motion.  The Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Sledge asked the Board to consider a motion to accept the settlement of $14,000 from Church Hill 
Cleaning Works and mark the account as paid in full. Mr. Crooks made the motion.  Mr. Millhiser 
seconded the motion The Motion passed unanimously. 

.  
Adjournment: 
The meeting adjourned at 1:07 PM. 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted 
 
 

 
           
      Secretary to the meeting 
 
Approved: 
 
 
     
John Molster, EDA Board Chair 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ASM REPORT 

 











































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EDA FINANCIAL REPORT 

 









































MONARCH CONTRACT



Monarch Consulting Services 
Monarch Consulting Services, LLC  •  PO Box 2804  •  Mechanicsville, VA 23116  •  (804) 427-6797 

 

 
 
 
March 17, 2023 
 
 
 
Department of Economic Development 
c/o Carla Childs 
1500 East Main Street 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
 
RE: Annual Inspection Services for Stone Brewing Company 
 
Ms. Childs,  
 
This proposal confirms our recent discussion regarding annual roof inspections for the Stone Brewing 
Company located at 4300 Williamsburg Ave., Richmond, VA.  

 
The scope of work for annual inspections will include: 

• Visual survey of the roof and associated roof components.  
• Review of leak history logs and/or conduct an interview with a member of the operations/ 

management department regarding the leak history.  
• Written report: 

o Completion of a Roof Maintenance Inspection Checklist for each roof section.  
o Short term recommendations for observed deficiencies and recommendations for any 

proactive long term maintenance, as necessary. 
 

A sample checklist is attached. The form can be adjusted as needed or to meet the requirements outlined in 
the lease agreement. The form will be filled out electronically.  
 
Fee: $ 1,200.00 (one thousand, two hundred dollars), fee to be billed upon submission of report.  
 
I sincerely appreciate the opportunity to provide you with a quote for this scope of work.  I look forward to 
working with you soon. 
 
 
Best Regards, 
 
 
April McKelvey, RRC, RRO 
Registered Roof Consultant 
Registered Roof Observer 
Monarch Consulting Services, LLC 



General Roof Information
Date of Inspection:                 Year Installed: Date of Previous Inspection: 
Roof System Type: TPO Active Warranty: Yes

Roof System Details Roof Section: A

Component
Condition: Good, 

Fair, Poor
Action 

Required
Field of Roof Good

Field Seams Good

Lap Sealant Fair

T-patches Good

Roof Edge Good

Fascia/Coping Good

Expansion Joints Poor Yes

Penetrations Fair

Curb Flashing Good

Perimeter Flashing Good

Drainage Fair Yes

Other: Yes

Roof Maintenance Inspection Checklist

Comments/Notes

Additional Notes or Comments:



 

 
 

  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER & CONSULTANT 
 Page 1 of 3 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONSULTANT 

 

 
Compensation 
 

    LUMP SUM. Compensation for these services shall be a Lump Sum of $___. 
 

   TIME. Compensation for these services will be assessed on an hourly basis at a rate of $150/hour.  
 

  COST PLUS FIXED FEE. Compensation for these services shall be at the Consultant fixed professional fee, plus Reimbursable Expenses 
billed at a factor of 1.15 plus Subconsultant (contracting) billing times a factor of 1.15 and per the Consultant’s attached Definitions. The 
estimated compensation shall be a combination of an estimate of expenses and third-party billings of $       plus a Consultant fixed fee 
of       for an estimated total of      . 

 
Direct Job Wages or Billing Rates for Time and Materials or Cost plus Fixed Fee contracts are subject to change to reflect 
adjustments in the Consultant’s salary levels. 

 
In the event services beyond those specified in the Scope of Services and not included in the compensation above are required, the Consultant 
shall submit a fee estimate for such services and a contract modification shall be negotiated and approved in writing by the Client prior to any 
effort being expended on such services. 
 
Schedule of Payments: 
 
The Consultant shall be paid quarterly on the basis of invoices submitted. These invoices will be for the portion of the agreed upon compensation 
earned by the Consultant during that quarter and shall be paid upon receipt. The Consultant shall be paid for all invoices within 30 days of 
submittal. In the event the Client disputes the invoice or any portion thereof, the undisputed portion shall be paid to the Consultant based on 
contractual terms. Invoices not in dispute and unpaid after 30 days shall accrue interest at the rate of one percent per month. See Standard 
Provisions for invoices unpaid after 60 days. 
 
Execution: 
 
Execution of this document by duly authorized representatives of the Consultant and the Client, including the Consultant’s Standard Provisions 
(page 4) and any attachments, additional provisions as indicated, and addenda, represents the entire Agreement between the parties hereto and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. This agreement may be amended or modified by written 
instrument, but such instrument is valid only upon signature by both parties. Neither the Consultant nor Client shall assign, transfer, or encumber 
any rights, duties, or interests accruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the other. 
 
Client: __________________________________ Consultant: _____________________________ 
By: __________________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Signature:  __________________________________ Signature: _____________________________ 
Title: __________________________________ Title: _____________________________ 
Date: __________________________________ Date: _____________________________ 

 
ATTACHED:  Scope of Services    Standard Provisions   Other: Contract Form 

Addendum 
   Estimate of Professional Services or List of Billing Rates   Definitions       

Project Title: Stone Brewing Term: 1 Year  
Client: EDA of City of Richmond   

Address: 2401 W Leigh Street, Richmond, VA    

Contact: Carla Childs tel: 804-646-3151   
      Consultant: Monarch Consulting Services, LLC 

Address: PO Box 2804, Richmond, VA     
Contact: April McKelvey, RRC tel: 804-690-0312   

Project Description: Consulting Services for Drainage Assessment & Design 

Monarch Consulting Services, LLC
April McKelvey

President
03/17/2023



 

 
 

  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER & CONSULTANT 
 Page 2 of 3 

 
 Scope of Services 

 
Services may include, but are not limited to: 

 Provide investigative services for building envelope moisture intrusion. Services may include, but 
are not limited to: 
o Roof or skylight leak investigations.  
o Observation of water tests, core sampling, and other test methods and procedures typically 

conducted during a forensic leak investigation.  
o Review of work history, invoices, construction documents, previous correspondence 

between all involved parties that are associated with areas of concern. 
o Recommendations for corrective action. Recommendations will be given as a general 

guideline and not detailed enough for the purpose of soliciting bids.  
 Includes review of contractor generated proposals for corrective repairs to existing 

leaks.  
 Document production support. This may include; 

o Official responses or requests to the roofing manufacturer, roofing contractor, skylight 
vendor or Stone Brewing. 

o Third party observation reports for forensic investigations.  
 

Services shall not include: 
 Roof evaluation surveys. 
 Infrared surveys. 
 Design consultation for replacement or wholesale component upgrades.  

 
  



 

 
 

  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER & CONSULTANT 
 Page 3 of 3 

  Standard Provisions 
 

1. SERVICES. The Consultant shall provide professional services 
in accordance with the agreed upon Scope of Work.  
2. EXECUTION. This Agreement becomes effective upon 
signatures by authorized representation of the Client and the Consultant 
and upon receipt by The Consultant of a signed original or facsimile 
transmittal. If facsimile is initially sent to the Consultant, Client will 
provide the Consultant with a signed original for record as soon as 
practicable. 

3. INITIATION. The Consultant is authorized to proceed with 
services upon receipt of an executed Agreement or written Notice to 
Proceed. 

4. COMPLETION/TERMINATION.  This Agreement shall 
remain in force until completion and acceptance of the services or until 
terminated by mutual agreement. This Agreement may be terminated by 
either party upon a ten (10) day written notice should the other party fail 
substantially to perform in accordance with its terms. In the event of 
termination, The Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the 
compensation terms of this Agreement for services provided in 
accordance with the Scope of Services, together with all costs arising out 
of such termination. 
Continuing Service Agreements shall be reviewed annually for rates and 
shall remain in force until terminated in writing by either party, or 
otherwise stipulated contractually. 
5. STANDARD OF CARE. Services provided by the Consultant 
to Client under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent 
with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the 
same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances. This 
representation is in lieu of any warranties or other representations, either 
express or implied. 
6.  INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT. The Consultant is and shall 
be at all times during the term of this Agreement an independent 
Consultant and not an employee or agent of the Client. 
7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. The Consultant will endeavor 
to comply with Federal, State and local laws and ordinances applicable to 
the services to be provided under this Agreement. 
8. COLLECTION COSTS. In the event legal action is necessary 
to enforce the payment provisions of this Agreement if Client fails to 
make payment within sixty (60) days of the invoice date, the Consultant 
shall be entitled to collect from the Client any judgment or settlement 
sums due, reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs and expenses incurred 
by the Consultant in connection therewith. 

9. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. Drawings, specifications, 
reports, programs, manuals, or other documents, including all documents 
on electronic media, prepared under this Agreement are instruments of 
service and are, and shall remain, the property of the Consultant. The 
Consultant will retain all common law, statutory, and other reserved 
rights, including the copyright thereto. The Consultant shall not be held 
liable for reuse of documents or modifications thereof by the Client or its 
representatives for any purpose other than the original intent of this 
Agreement, without the written authorization of and appropriate 
compensation to the Consultant. 
10. SITE VISITS/OBSERVATION. If included in the Scope of 
Work, the Consultant shall visit the project and/or construction site at 
appropriate intervals to become generally familiar with the progress, 
quality of work (contractor’s work), and to determine if the work is 
proceeding in general accordance with the Contract Documents. Visits to 
the project site and observations made by the Consultant as part of 
services during construction under Agreement shall not make the 
Consultant responsible for, nor relieve the construction contractor(s) of 
the obligation to conduct comprehensive monitoring of the work 
sufficient to ensure conformance with the intent of the Contract 
Documents, and shall not make the Consultant responsible for, nor relieve 
the construction contractor(s) of the full responsibility for all construction, 
means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures necessary for 
coordinating and completing all portions of the work under the 
construction contractor(s) and for all safety precautions incidental thereto. 
11. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT. The Consultant 
will comply with federal regulations pertaining to Equal Opportunity 
Employment. The Consultant is in compliance with applicable local, state, 

and federal regulations concerning minority hiring. It is the Consultant’s 
policy to ensure that applicants and employees are treated equally without 
regard to race, creed, sex, age, color, religion, veteran status, ancestry, 
citizenship status, national origin, marital status, sexual orientation, or 
disability. The Consultant expressly assures all employees, applicants for 
employment, and the community of its continuous commitment to equal 
opportunity and fair employment practices. The Consultant’s equal 
opportunity employment policy applies to all phases of employment, 
including recruiting, hiring, job assignment, supervision, training, 
upgrading, transfer, compensation, benefits, promotion, education, 
recreation, layoff and termination. 
12. INSURANCE. The Consultant will maintain the following 
levels of insurance during the term of this Agreement. The Client will be 
named as an additional insured on the Commercial General Liability and 
Automobile Liability insurance policies. 

a. Workers Compensation (and Employers Liability Insurance) – as 
required by applicable statute. 

b. Commercial General Liability – $1,000,000 per occurrence for 
bodily injury, including death and property damage, and $2,000,000 
in the aggregate. 

c. Automobile Liability – minimum of $1,000,000 combined single 
limit for bodily injury and property damage. 

d. Professional Liability (E&O) - $1,000,000 each claim and in the 
aggregate.  

13. INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS. The Consultant 
shall indemnify and hold harmless the Client and its employees from 
liability, settlements, loss or costs resulting from the concurrent 
negligence of the Consultant and the Client. It is expressly agreed that the 
Consultant’s obligations and indemnity under this paragraph shall be 
effective only to the extent of the Consultant’s negligence. The 
Consultant’s liability is limited to the proceeds recovered from the 
insurance carried by the Consultant and within the monetary limits of 
insurance specified in this Agreement. 
In no event shall either Client or the Consultant be liable for any 
incidental, indirect or consequential damages. 
14. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. In recognition of the relative 
risks and benefits of the project to both the Client and the Consultant, the 
risks have been allocated such that the Client agrees, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, to limit the liability of the Consultant and its 
subconsultants on the project for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages 
of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses from any cause or causes, so 
that the total aggregate liability of the Consultant and its subconsultants 
to all those named shall not exceed $50,000 or the amount of the 
Consultant’s total fee paid by the Client for services under this 
Agreement, whichever is the greater. Such claims and causes include, but 
are not limited to negligence, professional errors or omissions, strict 
liability, breach of contract, or warranty. 
15. DISPUTES. Any action for claims arising out of or relating to 
this Agreement and/or respective services shall be governed by the laws 
of the State of Virginia. Venue shall be in the County of Hanover. 
Mediation is an express condition precedent to the filing of any legal 
action. 

16. ATTORNEY FEES. Should there be any suit or action 
instituted to enforce any right granted in this contract, the substantially 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements and 
reasonable attorney fees from the other party. The party who is awarded a 
net recovery against the party has previously made a bona fide offer of 
payment in settlement and the amount of recovery is the same or less than 
the amount offered in settlement. Reasonable attorney fees may be 
recovered regardless of the forum in which the dispute is heard, including 
an appeal. 
17. SEVERABILITY AND SURVIVAL. Any provision of this 
Agreement later held to be unenforceable for any reason shall be deemed 
void, and all remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 
All obligations arising prior to the termination of the Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating responsibility or liability between 
the Client and the Consultant shall survive the completion of the services 
hereunder and the termination of this Agreement. 

 

 



Page 1 of 4 

CONTRACT FORM ADDENDUM TO CONTRACTOR’S FORM 
 

CONTRACTOR NAME: Monarch Consulting Services, LLC 

DATE:   

 

 The Economic Development Authority of the City of Richmond, Virginia, a political subdivi-

sion of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Authority”), and the Contractor named above are this 

day entering into a Contract and, for their mutual convenience, the parties are using the standard 

form agreement provided by the Contractor.  This addendum, duly executed by the parties, is at-

tached to and hereby made a part of the Contract.  “Contract” as referred to herein includes Contrac-

tor’s Professional Services Agreement Between Owner and Consultant, and Contractor’s Standard 

Provisions attached thereto. 

 

 The Contractor represents and warrants that it is a corporation authorized to do in Virginia the 

business provided for in this Contract. 

 

 Notwithstanding anything in the Contractor’s form to which this Addendum is attached, the 

term of the Contract will not exceed one year. Payments to be made by the Authority for all goods, 

services and other deliverables under this Contract shall not exceed $10,000.00. Payments will be 

made only upon receipt of a proper invoice, detailing the goods and services provided and submitted 

to the Authority.  The total cumulative liability of the Authority, its officers, employees and agents in 

connection with this Contract or in connection with any goods, services, actions or omissions relating 

to the Contract, shall not under any circumstance exceed payment of the above maximum purchase 

price.  Annual payments by the Authority are subject to availability of funds. In its performance un-

der this Contract, the Contractor acts and will act as an independent contractor, and not as an agent or 

employee of the Authority. 

 

 The Contractor’s form contract is, with the exceptions noted herein, acceptable to the Author-

ity.  Nonetheless, because certain standard clauses that may appear in the Contractor’s form agree-

ment cannot be accepted by the Authority, and in consideration of the convenience of using that 

form, and this form, without the necessity of specifically negotiating a separate contract document, 

the parties hereto specifically agree that, notwithstanding any provisions appearing in the attached 

Contractor’s form contract, none of the following shall have any effect or be enforceable against the 

Authority: 

 

1. Requiring the Authority to maintain any type of insurance either for the Authority’s benefit or 

for the Contractor’s benefit; 

 

2. Renewing or extending the agreement beyond the initial term or automatically continuing the 

contract period from term to term or making the Contract “non-cancelable”; 

 

3. Requiring or stating that the terms of the attached Contractor’s form agreement shall prevail 

over the terms of this addendum in the event of conflict; 

 

4. Requiring the Authority to indemnify or to hold harmless the Contractor for any act or omis-

sion; 

 

5. Imposing interest charges contrary to that specified by Article 4 of Chapter 43 of Title 2.2 of 

the Code of Virginia, concerning prompt payment; 



Page 2 of 4 

 

6. Requiring the application of the law of any state other than Virginia in interpreting or enforc-

ing the contract or requiring or permitting that any dispute under the Contract be resolved in 

the courts of any state other than Virginia; 

 

7. Requiring any total or partial compensation or payment for lost profit or liquidated damages 

by the Authority if the Contract is terminated before its ordinary term ends; 

 

8. Requiring that the contract be “accepted” or endorsed by the home office or by any other of-

ficer subsequent to execution by an official of the Authority before the Contract is considered 

in effect; 

 

9. Delaying the acceptance of this Contract or its effective date beyond the date of execution; 

 

10. Limiting or adding to the time period within which claims can be made or actions can be 

brought; 

 

11. Limiting the liability of the Contractor; 

 

12. Permitting unilateral modification of this contract by the Contractor; 

 

13. Binding the Authority to any arbitration or to the decision of any arbitration board, commis-

sion, panel or other entity; 

 

14. Obligating the Authority to pay costs of collection or attorney’s fees; 

 

15. Granting the Contractor a security interest in property of the Authority; and 

 

16. Bestowing any right or incurring any obligation that is beyond the duly granted authority of 

the undersigned Authority representative to bestow or incur on behalf of the Authority. 

 

This Contract, consisting of (i) this Addendum together with the attached Supplemental Conditions,  

and (ii) the attached Contractor’s form agreements constitute the entire agreement between the par-

ties and may not be waived or modified except by written agreement between the parties. 

 

This Contract has been reviewed by a duly authorized representative of the Authority.  Its substantive 

terms are appropriate to the needs of the Authority and sufficient funds have been allocated for its 

performance by the Authority.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Contract to be duly executed as of the date 

written first above, intending thereby to be legally bound. 

 

AUTHORITY by:   CONTRACTOR by:   

 

Title:   Title:   

 

Date:   Date:   

 

SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS 



Page 3 of 4 

 

The Authority and the Contractor agree that, because the Authority is subject to the requirements of 

the Virginia Public Procurement Act, certain contract provisions mandated by that Act must be in-

cluded as a part of this Contract.  These Supplementary Conditions set forth those mandatory condi-

tions, which are hereby incorporated into this Contract. 

 

1. Contractual Claims.  The procedure for the resolution of contractual claims shall be as set 

forth in Va. Code § 2.2-4363(C). 

 

2. Drug-Free Workplace.  Pursuant to Va. Code § 2.2-4312, during the performance of this 

contract, the Contractor agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace for the Contractor’s em-

ployees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employ-

ment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dis-

pensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is prohibited in the Con-

tractor’s workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for viola-

tions of such prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed 

by or on behalf of the Contractor that the Contractor maintains a drug-free workplace; and 

(iv) include the provisions of the foregoing clauses in every subcontract or purchase order of 

over $10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  For 

the purposes of this section, “drug-free workplace” means a site for the performance of work 

done in connection with a specific contract awarded to a contractor in accordance with the 

Virginia Public Procurement Act, the employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in 

the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of any controlled 

substance or marijuana during the performance of the contract. 

 

3. Faith-Based Organizations.  Pursuant to Va. Code § 2.2-4343.1(D), the Authority does not 

discriminate against faith-based organizations. 

 

4. Employment Discrimination.  Pursuant to Va. Code § 2.2-4311 and 2.2-4311.1, the follow-

ing applies to this Contract: 

1. During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor agrees and represents as fol-

lows: 

a. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, disabil-

ity, or other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination in em-

ployment, except where there is a bona fide occupational qualification rea-

sonably necessary to the normal operation of the Contractor.  The Contractor 

agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants 

for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination 

clause.  

b. The Contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by 

or on behalf of the Contractor, will state that such Contractor is an equal op-

portunity employer. 

c. Notices, advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance with federal 

law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting 

the requirements of this section. 

d. The contractor does not, and shall not during the performance of the contract 

for goods and services in the Commonwealth, knowingly employ an unau-

thorized alien as defined in the federal Immigration Reform and Control Act 



Page 4 of 4 

of 1986. 

2. The Contractor will include the provisions of the foregoing paragraphs a, b and c in 

every subcontract or purchase order of over $10,000, so that the provisions will be 

binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. 

 

5. Kickbacks.  The Contractor warrants that it and all of its subcontractors are not and will not 

during the life of this Contract be in violation of Va. Code § 2.2-4372, which provides as fol-

lows: 

A. No contractor or subcontractor shall demand or receive from any of his suppliers 

or his subcontractors, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order, 

any payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services or anything, 

present or promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or greater value is 

exchanged. 

B. No subcontractor or supplier shall make, or offer to make, kickbacks as described 

in this section. 

C. No person shall demand or receive any payment, loan, subscription, advance, de-

posit of money, services or anything of value in return for an agreement not to 

compete on a public contract. 

D. If a subcontractor or supplier makes a kickback or other prohibited payment as 

described in this section, the amount thereof shall be conclusively presumed to 

have been included in the price of the subcontract or order and ultimately borne 

by the public body and shall be recoverable from both the maker and recipient.  

Recovery from one offending party shall not preclude recovery from other of-

fending parties. 

 

 



BHM ARMORY GRANT CONTRACT



Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF RICHMOND 
GRANT CONTRACT 

 
THIS GRANT CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into on this _____ day of 
_________, 2023, by and between the Economic Development Authority of the City of 
Richmond, Virginia (the “Authority”), a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, 
and The Armory Fund, LLC a Virginia limited liability company (the “Recipient”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, section 15.2-4905(13) of the Code of Virginia authorizes the Authority to 
make loans or grants in furtherance of the purposes of Chapter 49 of Title 15.2 of the Code of 
Virginia, including for the purposes of promoting economic development, and to forgive loans or 
other obligations if it is deemed to further economic development; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2022-055, the City Council of the City of 
Richmond appropriated to the Authority funds in the amount of $388,362 (the “Grant Funds”) 
for the purpose of making a grant to the Recipient; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority loaned the Recipient $2,300,000 for the purpose of 
renovating the Leigh Street Armory located at 122 West Leigh Street in the city (the “Loan”); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the renovation of the Leigh Street Armory resulted in the facility now 
utilized as the Black History Museum and Cultural Center of Virginia; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Recipient has been unable to repay the Loan and the City and the 
Authority desire to provide the Grant Funds to assist the Recipient in such repayment in 
furtherance of the economic development benefits provided by the Black History Museum and 
Cultural Center of Virginia. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals set forth above and good and valuable 
consideration as set forth below, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. Contact Information. 
 

A. The Authority’s point of contact for purposes of this Contract is: 
 

Leonard L. Sledge 
Executive Director 
City of Richmond 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
(804) 646-7576  

   Leonard.Sledge@rva.gov 
 
This point of contact is responsible for monitoring the Recipient’s compliance with this 



Page 2 of 3 

Contract. 
 
B. The Recipient’s point of contact for purposes of this Contract is: 

 
Shakia Gullette Warren  
The Armory Fund, LLC 
122 W. Leigh Street  
Richmond, VA 23220 
sgullettewarren@blackhistorymuseum.org 

 
 

C. Either party may change the contact information set forth in this section by 
submitting a written statement that the party is making such a change and setting 
forth the contact information of the party’s new point of contact to the other 
party’s point of contact. 

 
2. Scope of Services.  In consideration of its receipt of the Grant Funds the Recipient shall 

remit to the Authority $388,362 to be applied to the balance of the Loan. 
 
3. Performance Measures.  The Recipient shall remit the payment set forth in section 2 

above no later than June 30, 2023. 
 
4. Compliance Monitoring.  The Authority’s point of contact shall monitor the Recipient’s 

compliance with this Contract.  The Recipient shall furnish the City’s point of contact 
with any information reasonably requested by the City’s point of contact in order to 
enable the City’s point of contact to determine whether the Recipient met the 
performance measures set forth in this Contract. 

 
6. Recipient’s Representations and Warranties.  The Recipient represents and warrants  

that the Recipient’s signatory is duly authorized by the Recipient to enter into this 
Contract and thereby bind the Recipient to this Contract’s terms and conditions. This 
Contract is signed when a party’s signature is delivered by facsimile, email, or other 
electronic medium. These signatures must be treated in all respects as having the same 
force and effect as original signatures. 
 

7. Audit.  Pursuant to section 2-187 of the Code of the City of Richmond, the Recipient 
shall, as a condition of receiving monies from the City, be subject to periodic audits of its 
finances and expenditures of such City monies by the City Auditor on demand and 
without notice. 

 
Effective as of the date first written above. 
 
 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 
 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 
 
 
For the RECIPIENT: For the AUTHORITY: 
 
By:   By:   
 (signature) Date John S. Molster Date 
   Chairman 
   
 name 
    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
   
 title 
    
  General Counsel to the Authority Date 
 
 


	2023.05.25 Audit and Finance  Agenda.pdf
	ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RICHMOND
	III. Public Comment (5 minutes)
	IV. Meeting Minutes
	A. Meeting Minutes – March 23, 2023
	V. ASM Report
	A. March Report
	B. April Report
	VI. Review of Financial Statements
	A. March  Report
	B. April Report
	VII. New Business
	VIII. Other
	IX. Adjournment

	Monarch Contract 2023.pdf
	Stone Brewing AI 03-31-2022.pdf
	Stone Brewing AI 03-31-2022.pdf
	Roof Inspection Checklist
	Sheet1


	EDA Stone Consulting Agreement 03-17-23.pdf
	PO Box 2804, Richmond, VA 
	Compensation


	2023.03.23  Audit and Finance Minutes Final.pdf
	Economic Development Authority (EDA) of the City of Richmond, Virginia
	Committee Meeting Minutes
	March  23, 2023 Audit & Finance Committee Meeting
	Members present:
	Nathan Hughes, Chairperson
	Neil Millhiser
	Jéron Crooks
	Jer’Mykeal McCoy
	Others present:
	Bonnie Ashley - City of Richmond,
	Carla Childs – City of Richmond, Department of Economic Development
	Katie McConnell - Department of Economic Development
	Leonard Sledge – City of Richmond, Department of Economic Development
	Lisa Jones – A. G. Reese & Associates
	Rick Winston - City of Richmond, Department of Economic Development
	Glenn Majors - ASM Global
	Call to Order:
	Mr. Hughes called the meeting to order at 12:33 PM.  Ms. Childs recorded the meeting using Microsoft Teams.
	Public Comments:
	No public comments were received via email, phone, or otherwise by staff per Ms. Childs. Mr. Sledge read the public disclaimer.  The meeting notice was properly posted on the Economic Development Authority website and outside of the Department of Econ...
	Approval of Minutes of the Previous Meeting:
	Mr. Hughes asked for a motion to adopt the minutes of the February 23, 2023 Audit and Finance Committee meeting. Mr. Crooks moved to accept the minutes as stated. Mr. Millhiser seconded the motion. The Motion passed unanimously.
	ASM Report:
	Review of Financial Statements:
	EDA Operations
	New Business:
	Adjournment:
	The meeting adjourned at 1:07 PM.
	John Molster, EDA Board Chair




